Public Document Pack

Paul Reddaway
Head of Finance Treasury Management
Direct: 020 8379 4730
e-mail: paul.reddaway@enfield.gov.uk

LOCAL PENSION BOARD
Thursday, 20th December, 2018 at 2.30 pm in the Room 4, Civic
Centre, Silver Street, Enfield, EN1 3XA
Membership:
Councillor: Andy Milne, Ayfer Orhan and Vicki Pite

AGENDA
1.

WELCOME & INTRODUCTION

2.

APOLOGIES

3.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Members of the Local Pension Board are invited to identify any disclosable
pecuniary, other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests relevant to items on
the agenda.

4.

STANDING ITEMS (Pages 1 - 36)
Councillor Orhan (Chair) and Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pension
Investments) to introduce and present the standing items.
a. Pension Board minutes 4th October 2018
b. Register of breaches of the law - None
c. Conflicts of interest register (Declaration of interests) – None
d. Risk Register

5.

GOVERNANCE REVIEW (Pages 37 - 70)
Daniel Kanaris (Aon Representative) to present the report.
To consider the outcome of work commissioned to the review of the

1

governance arrangements in place for the Enfield Pension Scheme.
6.

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION BUSINESS UPDATE (Pages 71 - 72)
Julie Barker to present the item on Pensions Administration Business
Update.

7.

REVIEW OF PENSION COMMITTEE MINUTES (Pages 73 - 78)
Councillor Taylor (Chair of PP&I Committee) to provide an update on the
approved minutes.

8.

AOB

9.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday 28th March 2019.

2

Page 1
Public Document
Pack

Agenda Item 4

LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 4.10.2018

MINIUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE LOCAL PENSION
BOARD HELD ON THURSDAY, 4TH OCTOBER, 2018
MEMBERS: Councillor Orhan (Chair), Paul Bishop (Vice-Chair), Paul Reddaway
(Head of Finance Pension Investments), Matt Bowmer (Interim Director of
Finance), Androulla Nicou (LPB Member), Julie Barker (Head of Exchequer
Services), Pauline Kettless (LPB Member), Tim O’Connor (Pension Manager),
Dionne Findley (Graduate Trainee) and Tariq Soomauroo (Governance & Scrutiny
Officer)
Also Attending: Councillor Taylor (Chair PP&IC) & Daniel Kanaris (Aon
Representative)

13.

WELCOME & INTRODUCTION
Councillor Ayfer Orhan (Chair) welcomed and introduced the members of the
Local Pension Board.
Apologies for absence received from Fay Hammond (Director of Finance),
Councillor Pite and Milne.
Apologies for lateness received from Councillor Taylor.

14.

STANDING ITEMS
A.
B.
C.
D.

15.

Local Pension Board Minutes 31 July 2018 – AGREED
Register of breaches of the law – None
Declaration of interests – None
Risk Register – No alterations

GOVERNANCE REVIEW
Received a report for proposals regarding the review of the Enfield Pension
Fund Governance arrangements.
Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pensions Investments) tabled a cover
sheet to the Pension Fund Governance report.
Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pensions Investments) and Daniel Kanaris
(Aon Representative) introduced the report.

NOTED

Page 2
LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 4.10.2018
•
Paul Reddaway stated that at the previous Local Pension Board
meeting, members asked for assurances that the Enfield Pension Fund was
operating correctly
•
Paul Reddaway reported that Aon have been commissioned to run
proposals for a governance review for the Local Pension Board to approve
•

Daniel Kanaris highlighted Aon’s proposals into the following sections;

o
o
o
o
o

Governance Framework
Scope of Governance Review
Personnel
Proposed Work Plan
Timing and Cost

•
Daniel Kanaris informed the board that Aon will review their current
direction. They will make sure that Enfield have clear strategies and policies in
order for them to meet the fundamental legislative requirements.
•
Aon will also review and observe Enfield’s decision-making committees
ensuring that Enfield have an appropriate governance structure and that they
are involving the right people with the appropriate skills and knowledge.
•
The final report submitted will have a summary and will be presented to
the Pensions Board.
Daniel Kanaris left the meeting, the chair thanked him for his presentation.
Paul Reddaway invited the Board to ask questions and comments.
The Chair considered that the Aon review would provide an independent
assurance to the Board on the effectiveness of how the Pension Board
operated. This would be best captured by approving option 1. The Board
would consider if option 2 and 3 where required following the completion of
initial report by Aon. Paul Reddaway explained that the cost of the report
would be met by the pension Fund ‘s governance budget
The Chair suggested that the Board should try and avoid ‘To Follow’ reports
to allow members enough time to read the reports in detail prior to the
Pensions Board meetings.
Paul Bishop (Vice-Chair) stated that papers should not be tabled on at the
meeting particularly when a decision is required.
Paul Reddaway explained the main body of the report which set out Aon’s
proposal and options was sent out to members in line with the democratic
services timetable, however Paul apologised because the covering report was
tabled late.
16.

PENSIONS ADMINISTRATION BUSINESS UPDATE

Page 3
LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 4.10.2018

Received a Briefing Report on Training/Qualifications - Continual Professional
Development.
Tim O’Connor (Pension Manager) presented the item.
NOTED
•
Tim O’Conner highlighted that training is being delivered to the
Pensions Team. Tim stated that it is important to make sure that members of
the Pension Fund receive a professional and knowledgeable service.
•
Tim O’Connor stated that there is currently a 6 week turn around period
for transfers in and out. Training is underway which will ensure that all
members of the Pension Team are fully equipped to meet ongoing
challenges.
•
It was noted that the Pensions team has several new officers. They
currently have eight members of staff, two of which are part time. One to one
training sessions are currently being held to improve the general
understanding of benefit statements.
The Committee noted the progress being made and thanked Tim O’Connor
for his report.
17.

REVIEW OF THE PENSION, POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE
MINUTES - 1 AUGUST 2018
Received minutes from the Pension Policy & Investment Committee on the
1st August 2018.
Councillor Taylor (Chair PP&I Committee) highlighted key points from the
minutes of the last meeting.
NOTED
•
The Committee agreed that the additional allocation (c.6% of total
assets) to fixed income will be allocated to a multi asset credit (MAC)
mandate to re-position the bond portfolio strategic allocation.
•
A MAC fund product is available on the London CIV and is being
benched marked against other similar providers.
•
The Committee is in the process of reviewing the Funds’ Responsible
Investment (RI) strategy. Cllr Taylor has met Share Action and Southwark
Council to discuss the issue of fossil fuels.

Page 4
LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 4.10.2018
•
It was stated that developing a good Responsible Investment policy
required clear objectives and investment beliefs and needed a holistic
approach, rather than merely looking at individual environmental social and
governance issues.
The Chair then invited Members of the Board to ask Questions/Discuss:
•
A question was asked if there are any existing principles that should be
guiding the proposals?
•
This was last reviewed in n January 2017 and has been included in the
fund’s investment strategy statement. The Committee is now revising its
responsible investment policy and will bring it back to the Pensions Board
once it has been finalised.
The Chair thanked Councillor Taylor for the highlighted updates.
18.

PROPOSALS FOR LGPS FUNDING REPORTING IN A 'POOLED WORLD'
Received proposals for LGPS Fund reporting in a “Pooled World”.
Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pension Investments) presented the item.
NOTED
•
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA)
have put through a proposal for revised reporting for Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) funds
•
It was highlighted that CIPFA needed to be more transparent when
reporting costs and performance by the Local Government Pension Scheme
(LGPS) funds and pools
•
It is essential that disclosure
and reporting of all costs and
performance is completed in a consistent manner which meets Enfield’s
requirements
•
Hidden Costs should be reported particularly on, transaction costs and
trading costs.
The Board thanked Paul Reddaway for his presentation.

19.

THE PENSIONS
CAMPAIGN

REGULATOR'S

21ST

CENTURY

TRUSTEESHIP

Received a report on the Pensions Regulator’s 21st Century Trusteeship
Campaign (Member of the Board to note the contents of the report).
The Local Pension Board Members noted the report.

Page 5
LOCAL PENSION BOARD - 4.10.2018

20.

PENSIONS REGULATOR SURVEY
Received a Report on the Pensions Regulator Survey.
Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pension Investments) presented the item.
NOTED
•
The Pensions Regulator has undertaken a survey of Public Service
Pension providers, this looked at governance and administration.
•
The Pensions Regulator advised Enfield that the existing data is the
most important thing to look at. The Pensions Regulator advised Enfield to
focus on existing data.
•
The importance of using internal controls was highlighted in the
meeting. For example: The board must be notified of any breaches of the law.
The Board thanked Paul Reddaway for his presentation.

21.

PENSION FUND TRAINING SESSION
Received a presentation from Dionne Findley (Graduate Trainee) on LBE
Pension Fund Governance Requirements. (Slides attached below)
The Committee thanked Dionne Findley for her presentation.
The Chair advised that any further questions can be emailed to Paul
Reddaway on paul.reddaway@enfield.gov.uk

22.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
Thursday 20th December 2018

Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank

www.enfield.gov.uk

Minute Item 21

Striving for excellence

Page 7
1

LBE Pension Fund
Governance
Requirements

Governance and Key Legislation
1. The Structure and Governance of the LGPS

2. Key Governance Requirements

4. The Pensions Statutory Requirements
5. Pensions Accounting and Auditing

Page 8
2

3. The Pensions Regulator Requirements

Page 9
3

The Structure &
Governance of the LGPS

Governance of the LGPS
• One of the largest public sector pension schemes in the UK. It is a
nationwide pension scheme for people working in local government.
• The scheme regulations were made under the Superannuation
Act 1972 and the Public Service Pension Schemes Act 2013.
Page
Page10
4

New Governance structure in the LGPS
From the 1st April 2015, the new Governance Structure of
the LGPS can be summarised in the following diagram:

Page 11
5

London Borough
of Enfield

Who is in the Pension Fund ?
London Borough of Enfield

Page
Page12
6

Pensions Boards from 1 April 2015
- Must not have a conflict of interest
- Must have employer and member representatives in equal
numbers

- Members must have knowledge and understanding of the law
relating to pensions

- Each Council must produce an agreed Board’s Terms of
Reference

Page 13
7

- Members must be conversant with the rules of the scheme
and any document recording policy about the administration
of the scheme

Page
Page14
8

Key Governance
Requirements

Knowledge and Understanding – Pension
Board Members
Legal Requirements:
Must be conversant with:

2) Document recording policies about the administration of the
scheme
3) Knowledge and understanding of the laws relating to pensions

Page 15
9

1) Rules of the scheme

Conflicts of Interest & representation
Legal Requirements – Section 5 of the 2013 Act

Enfield Council must be satisfied with the following:

2) Every member of the pension board must provide such
information
3) The Pension Board must include equal numbers of employer
and member representatives

Page 16
10

1) Newly appointed members/ outstanding members of the
pension board do not have a conflict of interest

Publishing information about the scheme
Legal Requirements:
- Enfield Council must publish up to date information about the
pension board

1) Who the members of the pension board are
2) Representation on the board of members of the scheme
3) Matters falling within the pension board’s responsibility
section 6(1) of the 2013 Act

Page 17
11

- Information must include:

Managing risks and Internal controls
Legal Requirements
- Enfield Council is responsible for establishing and
operating internal controls
Page 18
12

- Must ensure that the scheme is administered and
managed in accordance with the scheme rules
and the requirements of the law

Maintaining accurate member data
Legal Requirements:

- The council should also be able to demonstrate that they keep
records in accordance to the following…

Page 19
13

Enfield Council must keep a record of information relating to:
- Scheme member information
- Transactions
- Pension Board Meetings and decisions

Providing information to members and others
Legal Requirement – Annual Benefits statements
Must be provided no later than 17 months after the scheme has
been established

-

Provides a description of the benefits earned in respect of the
pensionable service

-

Subsequent statements must be provided at least annually!

-

Other legal requirements include occupational pension schemes

Page 20
14

-

Reporting breaches of the law
Legal requirements – Section 70 Pensions Act 2004
It is required to report breaches of the law to the pensions
regulator

- Failure to comply is likely to be significant to the Regulator
and their processes.
- The report must be made in writing as soon as possible

Page 21
15

Example:
- A legal duty relevant to the administration of the scheme has
not been complied with

Reporting breaches of the law

Page 22
16

Failure to comply could result in a civil penalty ( up
to £5,000 individual or £50,000 otherwise)

Enforcement powers
If legal requirements are not met this
can result in:
1) Civil Penalties

3) Power to appoint a skilled person
(section 14a 2004 Act)

4) Power to recover unpaid
contributions

Page 23
17

2) Publishing the outcome of the
Activity

Responding to the Code of Practice
The Pension Board has a responsibility for assisting and
ensuring compliance with the Pensions Regulatory system
requirements.
Important for schemes to have a good governance in place

- Need to have proper documentation of compliance and
good practice
- Ensure that there are good internal controls in place

Page 24
18

Example:

Page 25
19

The Pensions Regulator
Requirements

The Pensions Regulator – The Trustee
Toolkit

Page 26
20

The Pensions Regulator’s role – April 2015

Page 27
21

Page 28
22

The Pensions Statutory
Requirements

Key policies and Strategies

Page 29
23

Communications Policy
Policy concerning communications with:
Members
Representatives of members
Prospective members
Employing authorities

Including …
-

-

The provision of information and publicity about the Scheme to
members, representatives of members and employing authorities
The format, frequency and method of distributing such information
such or publicity
The promotion of the Scheme to prospective members and their
employers

Page 30
24

-

Page 31
25

Pensions Accounting and
Auditing

Pensions Accounting and Auditing
Pension Fund Annual Report Regulation 57

- Pension Fund Annual Report must be produced
and published every year for the year ending the
31st March

- Must follow Secretary of State Guidance

Page 32
26

- Published on or before 1st December following each
year – end

Page 33
27

Questions?

Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank

Description

Actions in Place

Progress- comment

Risk category/
rating/DOT

Lead officers/
Councillors

PEN 01 - Fund
assets fail to
deliver returns in
line with the
anticipated return
underpinning
valuation of
liabilities over the
long-term
PEN 02 Inappropriate longterm investment
strategy

1. Anticipate long-term return on a relatively
prudent basis to reduce risk of failing to meet
return expectations.
2. Analyse progress at three yearly valuations for
all employers.
3. Undertake Inter-valuation monitoring.

With the assistance of the Aon the position
is kept under regular review and Pension
Committee informed of the impact of
prevailing market conditions on the funding
level.

Strategic risk
Likelihood =
Medium
Impact = Large
Rating = D2
(Static)

Paul Reddaway

1. Set Pension Fund specific strategic asset
allocation benchmark after taking advice from
investment advisers, balancing risk and reward,
based on historical data.
2. Keep risk and expected reward from strategic
asset allocation under review.
3. Review asset allocation formally on an annual
basis.
4. Investment strategy group actively monitors this
risk

The PP&IC supported by our Advisors
monitor the investment strategy and to
develop proposals for change / adjustment
for Pension Committee consideration.

Strategic risk
Likelihood = Low
Impact = Large
Rating = E2
(Static)

Paul Reddaway

1. The structure includes active and passive
mandates and several managers are employed to
diversify the risk of underperformance by any
single manager.
2. Short term investment monitoring provides alerts
on significant changes to key personnel or
changes of process at the manager.
3. Regular monitoring measures performance in
absolute terms and relative to the manager’s index
benchmark, supplemented with an
analysis of absolute returns against those
underpinning the valuation.
4. Investment managers would be changed

The Fund is widely diversified, limiting the
impact of any single manager on the Fund.
Active monitoring of each manager is
undertaken with Advisors and Officers
meeting managers where there are
performance issues and communicating
regularly.
Comments on whether mandates should be
maintained or reviewed are included and
where needed specific performance issues
will be discussed and reviewed

Strategic risk
Likelihood = Low
Impact = Small
Rating = E4
(Static)

Paul Reddaway

Page 35

PEN 03 - Active
investment
manager
under-performance
relative to
benchmark

Officers will also closely monitor manager
performance between the quarterly reviews
The impact of each decision is carefully
tracked against the Investment Strategy
Statement for the Fund to ensure that longterm returns are being achieved and are
kept in line with liabilities.

PEN 04 - Pay and
price inflation
significantly more
than anticipated

PEN 06 -Pensions
Administration
poor quality
information
supplied to both
members and the
Fund Actuary
PEN 07- Failure to
receive employers
contributions

Receipt of contributions from employers are
monitored monthly – for timelessness and
accuracy.
Escalation Procedure in place for late payments

The impact of pay and price inflation is
monitored as part of the Council's MTFF
processes and any potential impact on
pension fund contributions is kept under
review and factored into the Council's overall
position.

Strategic risk
Likelihood = Low
Impact = Medium
Rating = E3
(Static)

Paul
Reddaway/Julie
Barker

Strategic risk
Likelihood = Low
Impact = Small
Rating = E4
(Static)

Paul
Reddaway/Julie
Barker

Strategic risk
Likelihood = Low
Impact = Large
Rating = E2
(Static)

Julie Barker

Strategic risk
Likelihood = Low
Impact = Small
Rating = E4
(Static)

Paul Reddaway

However, there is an increasing likelihood of
rising inflation impacting on the overall
liabilities of the Fund however the risk rating
takes this into account.

Mortality monitoring is undertaken by the
Fund’s actuary

All breaches are reported in the Fund’s
Annual report. There have been no major
breaches for six years.

Page 36

PEN 05 Pensioners living
longer.

following persistent or severe underperformance
1. The focus of the actuarial valuation process is
on real returns on assets, net of price and pay
increases. The actuarial basis examines disparity
between the inflation linking which applies to
benefits, the escalation of pensionable payroll
costs, which only applies to active members, and
on which employer and employee contributions are
based.
2. Inter-valuation monitoring gives early warning
and investment in index-linked bonds also helps to
mitigate this risk.
3. Employers pay for their own salary awards and
are reminded of the geared effect on pension
liabilities of any bias in pensionable pay rises
towards longer-serving employees.
1. Mortality assumptions are set with some
allowance for future changes in life expectancy.
Sensitivity analysis in triennial valuation helps
employers understand the impact of changes in life
expectancy.

Page 37

Agenda Item 5

ITEM 3
London Borough of Enfield
REPORT TO;

Local Pension Board

SUBJECT:

Pension Fund Governance Review

LEAD OFFICER

Paul Reddaway/Julie Barker

1. RECOMMENDATIONS
To note the presentation and the review report by Aon. To ask officers to prepare a
plan with timelines to demonstrate the actions required to ensure the gaps identified
are closed. The action plan will be added to standing items to ensure there is
visibility on progress on the action plan at future Local Pension Board meetings.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Aon Pension consultants were requested to undertake a review of the governance
and effectiveness of the Enfield Pension Fund. Aon will reveal the findings of their
report through a presentation at the Local Pension Board. Any issues that arise will
be addressed by officers and a detailed plan will be drawn-up to close any gaps.

3. DETAIL
The Local Pension Board at its October meeting requested Aon to undertake a
review of the governance arrangements of the Enfield Pension Fund and its
effectiveness. The Aon was asked to include how well the Fund compares to the
Pension Regulators (tPR) key performance indicators (KPIs).
The review was requested to look at the effectiveness of the governance of the
Fund. This involved looking at three things




Direction – having clear strategies and policies that also meet legislative
requirements
Delivery – having a clear plan for implementing the Fund's strategies and
policies, together with appropriate monitoring as to whether they are being
achieved, and good risk management ensure effective and efficient delivery
Decisions – having an appropriate governance structure, involving the right
people, with the right attitude and the appropriate skills and knowledge is key.

The report will cover the review and comments on the following strategies (or lack of
strategies)
 Funding Strategy Statement (FSS)
 Investment Strategy Statement (ISS)
 Governance Policy and Compliance Statement

Page 38











Communications Policy
Administering Authority Discretionary Policy
Administration Strategy
Risk Management Policy & Strategy
Annual report and accounts
Knowledge and Skills/Training Policy
Conflicts of Interest Policy
Breaches of the Law Procedure
Employer (admission / cessation / bulk transfer) Policy

The review will provide observations and recommendations – highlighting and good
and bad that have been identified by the review.
The presentation will include analysis of the progress the Fund has made on
achieving the Pension Regulators and areas where further progress is required.
The Aon report is attached in Appendix 1.

Page 39

Governance Review
London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
Prepared for

London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund

Prepared by

Daniel Kanaris, Senior Public Sector Benefits &
Governance Consultant
Karen McWilliam, Partner & Head of Public Sector Benefits
and Governance Consultancy
11 December 2018

Date

Copyright © 2018 Aon Hewitt Limited. All rights reserved.
aon.com
Aon Hewitt Limited is authorised and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority.
Registered in England & Wales No. 4396810
Registered office:
The Aon Centre | The Leadenhall Building | 122 Leadenhall Street | London | EC3V 4AN
This report and any enclosures or attachments are prepared on the understanding that it is
solely for the benefit of the addressee(s). Unless we provide express prior written consent
no part of this report should be reproduced, distributed or communicated to anyone else
and, in providing this report, we do not accept or assume any responsibility for any other
purpose or to anyone other than the addressee(s) of this report.

Page 40

Executive Summary
We have been asked by the London Borough of Enfield, the administering authority
for the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund, to carry out a governance review in
relation to the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund. The Fund is one of the 88
Funds who are part of the national Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) in
England and Wales.
The purpose of this review is to ensure that the London Borough of Enfield, the
Administering Authority for the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund, is meeting
its legal requirements in relation to the running of the Fund. In addition, the review
highlights areas of good practice in relation to the governance of the Fund and also
recommends any potential areas for improvement. The Aon governance framework
considers the following key areas:

Direction – What is the Fund trying to achieve?
▪

Legislation

▪

Strategies and Policies

Delivery – How does the Fund meet its aims?
▪

Business Planning

▪

Performance Monitoring

▪

Risk Management

Decisions – Does the Fund have effective decision making?
▪

Governance Structure

▪

Behaviour

▪

Pensions Skills and Knowledge

It was agreed with the Administering Authority that this review would not consider in
detail the effectiveness of the Local Pension Board and it would also not include a
detailed review of how the governance arrangements have evolved to incorporate the
transition to asset pooling. It focusses purely on available documents; we have not
observed any Committee meetings nor have we collated the views of the Committee
on its effectiveness.
Our overall conclusion of this review is that the governance of the Fund is of a good
standard in many areas and meets legal requirements on the whole, and in some
areas the Administering Authority is demonstrating best practice. Where strategies /
policies exist, they are generally of a good standard (although we do have a number
of suggested improvements). However, we strongly recommend formalising a number
of Fund strategies / policies that are not currently in place, including in the areas of
Administration, Conflicts of Interest, Breaches of Legislation, Governance,
Communications and Training.
In addition, in general the Fund seems to operate effectively in practice in terms of
meeting its aims and making effective decisions, but there are a number of areas
where we recommend improving the Fund documentation to be clearer and more
transparent about how the Fund operates.

Governance Review

Page 41

Next steps
We understand this report will be considered by the Pension Policy and Investment
Committee in due course.
We look forward to answering any questions and discussing the conclusions with
officers following the Pension Policy and Investment Committee meeting (or with the
Committee themselves directly if required). We recommend that an action plan is
developed in relation to implementing these recommendations, in order that progress
can be monitored and updated on an ongoing basis.

Governance Review

Page 42

Governance Review
London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund
Table of Contents
1 - Introduction

4

2 - Governance Framework

5

3 - Direction – What are you trying to achieve?

9

4 - Delivery – How do you meet your aims?

21

5 - Decisions – Do you have effective decision making?

24

Appendix – Reference Material

30

Information

31

Governance Review

Page 43

1 - Introduction
Purpose and scope
This paper sets out the findings of Aon's governance review of the London Borough of Enfield
Pension Fund, which was commissioned by the London Borough of Enfield. The London
Borough of Enfield (the "Administering Authority") is responsible for managing and administering
the London Borough of Enfield Pension Fund (the "Fund"), which is part of the Local
Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS").
The purpose of this review is to ensure that the legal requirements in relation to the governance
of the Fund are being adhered to, as well as to highlight areas of good practice in relation to the
governance of the Fund, and also any recommended areas for improvement. We have
compared the Administering Authority's key documents and policies that govern the Fund
against the Aon governance framework. The Aon governance framework is explained further in
the next section of this report.
The review has been carried out a high level and did not involve any detailed investigation into
services such as administration, communications, funding or investments. Accordingly, it does
not provide any technical comment in relation to any of these areas, including regarding the
technical content of the related key governance documents. The review does include
consideration, at a high level, of the legal requirements relating to governance, for example, the
requirement to publish certain policies and strategies under LGPS legislation. Though it includes
some legal elements, these are presented by us in our capacity as pension consultants and not
as legal experts, and as such, nothing in this report should be considered as legal advice.

Research
The information upon which this review has been based has been gathered by a desk-top review
of key reports, statements and policies governing the scheme including information available on
the Council or Pension Fund's websites. The documents considered are listed in Appendix A.

We hope the information contained within this report is useful to the London Borough of Enfield
Pension Policy and Investment Committee, Pension Board and officers in considering how best to
govern the Fund in the future.
We look forward to answering any questions in relation to the report, and particularly any areas
where we have highlighted that improvements could be made.
We recommend that an action plan is developed in relation to implementing these
recommendations in order that progress can be monitored and updated on an ongoing basis.

Governance Review

4

Page 44

2 - Governance Framework
This section describes the best practice framework against which this review
was conducted.
There are some key benefits from having effective governance in place, including:
▪

Robust risk management that can assist in preventing issues from arising, or at least reducing
their impact should they arise

▪

Ensuring resources and time are appropriately focussed

▪

Timely decision making and implementation of change

▪

A clear view of how the Fund is being operated and making use of the Pension Policy and
Investment Committee.

At Aon, we have a number of beliefs when it comes to achieving good governance including:
▪

Direction – having clear strategies and policies that also meet legislative requirements are
fundamental

▪

Delivery – having a clear plan for implementing the Fund's strategies and policies, together with
appropriate monitoring as to whether they are being achieved, and good risk management
ensure effective and efficient delivery

▪

Decisions – having an appropriate governance structure, involving the right people, with the
right attitude and the appropriate skills and knowledge is key.

These beliefs are shown in the following diagram and described in more detail below.

Governance Review

5

Page 45

Table 1 – Aon governance framework
Direction – What are you trying to achieve?
Legislation
and guidance

The Fund's strategies and policies should be in line with legislative
requirements and any related professional guidance.

Strategies
and policies

The Fund's strategies and policies should clearly set out the aims,
principles, protocols and environment for how the Fund is managed. The
strategies and policies:
▪ should be wide ranging covering all key areas including funding,
investments, administration, communications and governance itself
▪ should be clearly articulated, to provide a framework within which those
managing the Fund are able to operate
▪ should provide the focus for all future decisions and plans
▪ should be agreed by those responsible for governing the Fund.

Delivery – How do you meet your aims?

Business
Planning

Each Fund should have a business plan, setting out required activities in
the forthcoming period. Those activities:
▪ should be driven by the Fund's strategies and policies
▪ will include activities driven by changes in overriding legislation.
Those responsible for governing the Fund should be provided with
appropriate performance information. Measurements should:
▪ illustrate whether the Fund's aims are being achieved
▪ cover the full range of key areas (e.g. investments, funding,
governance, communications and administration)

Performance
Measurement

▪
▪
▪
▪

Risk
Management

Governance Review

illustrate whether the Fund's business plan is being achieved
be updated in accordance with appropriate timescales
be presented in a manner that is easy to follow and understandable to
those governing the Fund
assist in identifying changes to the Fund's business plan, strategies,
polices and aims.

Effective risk management is critical to minimise the impact and/or
probability of unfortunate events and to maximise the realisation of
opportunities. It should be:
▪ aligned with the Fund's aims
▪ a key consideration in decision making
▪ systematic or structured
▪ an integral part of the Administering Authority's processes and
procedures on a daily basis.

6

Page 46

Decisions – Do you have effective decision making?

Governance
structure

There is no one 'correct' governance structure. The Administering
Authority's structure should:
▪ have clear terms of reference
▪ have a clearly documented scheme of delegation
▪ allow decision making at the appropriate level
▪ allow quick decision making where appropriate
▪ include appropriate representation from stakeholders
▪ involve well-presented information/reports
▪ ensure the full range of subject matters are being considered
▪ allow sufficient time for discussion where necessary
▪ have good quality (committee and board) administration (e.g. issuing
papers in good time)
▪ involve a process for managing conflicts
▪ provide transparency to stakeholders where appropriate.

Behaviour

A good governance structure will not be effective unless it involves the right
people with the right attitude. Individuals should:
▪ have a high level of attendance at meetings
▪ demonstrate integrity in relation to their Fund role
▪ be engaged and provide appropriate challenge
▪ be accountable for the decisions made
▪ highlight any potential conflicts they may have
▪ for a Chairperson, manage the meetings fairly without any bias to
individuals or self
▪ prepare adequately for meetings.
A critical element is the need for those managing the Fund to have the
appropriate level of knowledge and skills. Administering Authorities should:

Skills and
knowledge

Governance Review

▪
▪
▪
▪

clearly articulate the knowledge and skills requirements in a Fund policy
provide ongoing training in an effective and suitable manner to meet
those requirements
regularly review whether knowledge aspirations are being met
ensure they rely appropriately on officers and advisers to provide expert
knowledge.

7

Page 47

Throughout this report we have included comments and facts which we hope are useful to the
Administering Authority, in highlighting areas of good practice but also identifying areas for potential
improvement. To provide some greater clarity on the intention of our comments, we have included
graphics to illustrate whether they are:
▪
▪

☺ positive – meets legal requirements, national guidance and good practice.
 negative – requires improvement as it does not meet legal requirements or practices we
consider key to good governance.

▪

 neutral – meets legal practice, in the main, but could be improved to meet good practice or
national guidance.

Governance Review

8

Page 48

3 - Direction – What are you trying to achieve?
In this section, we consider whether the Fund has clear strategies and
policies which meet the following requirements:
▪

The Fund's strategies and policies should be in line with legislative
requirements and any related professional guidance.

▪

The Fund's strategies and policies should clearly set out the aims,
principles, protocols and environment for how the Fund is managed.

▪

The Fund’s strategies and policies should:
•

be wide ranging covering all key areas including funding,
investments, administration, communications and governance itself

•

be clearly articulated, to provide a framework within which those
managing the Fund are able to operate

•

provide the focus for all future decisions and plans

•

be agreed by those responsible for governing the Fund.

In the table that follows, we summarise the key policies and strategies which we would expect to be
in place for a well governed LGPS Fund, considering both legal requirements and best practice.
Note that we have not considered the principles or methodology within these documents, given that
this review is focussed on governance matters and not, for example, on the quality or suitability of
actuarial or investment matters.
We have indicated in the table whether the documents are;
▪

legally required under the LGPS, or

▪

expected in accordance with CIPFA, LGPS Scheme Advisory Board ("SAB") or The Pensions
Regulator's ("TPR") Guidance or Codes (many of which have some element of statutory
backing),

and we then consider whether they are currently in place for the Fund and whether they meet these
legal requirements, or any requirements laid out in Guidance or Codes.
We also consider the quality and structure of these policies and strategies. For example, it is
important that the Pension Policy and Investment Committee is fully engaged in the development of
all strategies and policies, whilst receiving appropriate advice and expertise from the officers and
advisers of the Fund. It must therefore be clear that strategies and policies are part of Committee
business and are subject to ongoing review. We consider some other best practice elements later.

Governance Review

9

Table 2 – Strategies and policies – meeting key requirements
Strategy / Policy

Fund Version? /
Version Date

Legal or National
Guidance
Requirement

Adherence to Legislation and
Guidance

Process, decision making or more
general observations

Funding Strategy
Statement (FSS)

Yes – 31 March
2017

▪

LGPS Regulations

▪

CIPFA FSS
Guidance

☺ Meets requirements and also
follows the CIPFA 2016 guidance.

 Despite the FSS clearly setting out
when it is effective from, and when it
will be reviewed, there is nothing
showing exactly when or how (e.g. at
Committee) it was actually approved. It
would be good practice to include this
information.

The Administering
Authority reviewed its
strategy as part of the
2016 valuation.

Yes – Approved
23 February 2017
by Committee

▪

LGPS Regulations

▪

MHCLG (formerly
DCLG) Guidance
on Preparing and
Maintaining an
Investment Strategy
Statement

▪

Compliance
Statement against
CIPFA guidance on
the Myners
Principles in the
LGPS

☺ Meets requirements in the
Regulations and MHCLG guidance.
☺ There is a compliance statement
against the Myners Principles detailed
in Appendix 2 of the ISS.

☺ The ISS includes information
relating to ESG and corporate
governance matters, as well as
compliance against the principles of
the Stewardship Code.

Page 49

Investment
Strategy Statement
(ISS)

☺ It is also clear that appropriate
advice from the actuary was taken.

 The ISS is clear in setting out the
Fund's aims and objectives, although
could be clearer in setting out the roles
and responsibilities of the key parties
(i.e. all in one section).
☺ The ISS sets out how the fund will
manage its investments through its
chosen Investment Pool
 Although the annual report clearly
sets out how and when this was
approved, there is nothing to this effect
in the ISS itself. It would be good
practice to include this information in
case it is read independently.

Governance Review

10

Strategy / Policy

Fund Version? /
Version Date

Legal or National
Guidance
Requirement

Adherence to Legislation and
Guidance

Process, decision making or more
general observations

Governance Policy
and Compliance
Statement

Compliance
Policy Statement
(included in
Annual Report &
Accounts for
2017/18)

▪

LGPS Regulations

▪

Compliance
Statement against
Secretary of State
guidance

 The Governance Policy Statement
provides all of the information that is
required by the Local Government
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013
except the statement of compliance
against the Secretary of State’s
guidance (i.e. Regulation 55(1)(c).

 The Compliance statement refers to
functions of the Administering
Authority being delegated to the
Pension Board (rather than the
Committee). In particular, funding
responsibilities are specifically
mentioned as being “delegated to the
Pension Board, as advised by the
PP&IC”. These references are
presumably incorrect and need to be
rectified asap.

Communications
Policy

Governance Review

Communications
policy statement
detailed in Annual
Report &
Accounts for
2017/18.

▪

LGPS Regulations

 The Communications Policy
Statement provides nearly all of the
information that is required by the
Local Government Pension Scheme
Regulations 2013. However, this is set
out in a very high-level way with little
detail, and also doesn’t mention
communicating with member
representatives which is a requirement
of the regulations.

 The Communications Policy
focusses purely on the statutory
requirements. It would be good
practice to expand this to include
areas such as communications
objectives and how those are
measured, and to publish it as a
standalone policy on the website.

11

Page 50

 The Governance Compliance Policy
focusses purely on the statutory
requirements. It would be good
practice to expand this to include
areas such as governance objectives,
and to publish it as a standalone policy
on the website.

Fund Version? /
Version Date

Legal or National
Guidance
Requirement

Adherence to Legislation and
Guidance

Process, decision making or more
general observations

Administering
Authority
Discretionary
Policy

No, the Council
has a
discretionary
policy as Scheme
Employer, but no
Administering
Authority policy
exists

▪

LGPS Regulations
– this requires only
minimal elements

 An Administering Authority
discretionary policy is a legal
requirement. Although this is an
optional strategy we consider it
integral to the proper management of
the Fund. When setting this up, we
recommend creating a policy that goes
well beyond the basic minimum legal
requirements, as well as including all
the good practice elements below.

 The employer discretions policy
should be clearer that it covers the
Council’s discretions as Scheme
Employer, and is not an Administering
Authority discretionary policy. In
addition, it would be helpful to include
references to show which regulation
each discretion covers.

Administration
Strategy

No

▪

LGPS Regulations,
(as an optional
strategy)

 No Administration strategy is in
place. Although this is an optional
strategy we consider it integral to the
proper management of the Fund.

N/A

Risk Management
Policy & Strategy

Yes – adopted at
October 2018
Committee
meeting

▪

CIPFA Guidance

☺ A risk management policy is now in
place complying with CIPFA guidance.

 The document would benefit from
including any of the missing elements
below (e.g. when was document
approved, when is it reviewed etc) and
should also be published on the
website.

Governance Review

12

Page 51

Strategy / Policy

Fund Version? /
Version Date

Legal or National
Guidance
Requirement

Adherence to Legislation and
Guidance

Process, decision making or more
general observations

Annual report and
accounts

Yes – 2017/18

▪

LGPS Regulations

▪

CIPFA Guidance
"Preparing the
Annual Report"

▪

CIPFA accounting
guidance

 The report includes very little
information relating to administration,
and especially administration
performance. The LGPS regulations
require it to contain "a report of the
arrangements made during the year
for the administration". Although this
is quite broad, we would question
whether the information contained
clearly covers this requirement. It also
does not appear to meet the
requirements of the CIPFA Annual
Report Guidance in relation to
Administration Management
Performance and the Scheme
Administrative Report. A more
detailed check should be carried out
against the CIPFA Annual Report
Guidance to ensure all areas are
included, or at least to ensure there
are valid reasons for areas being
excluded given it is statutory guidance.
We note that the CIPFA Annual Report
Guidance is currently subject to review
and is likely to require further elements
of information.

 When viewing the annual report
online (both on the Enfield Fund
website and via the SAB website that
lists all LGPS Fund accounts), the
Enfield report is correctly linked but the
header on the tab that opens says
“Hampshire Pension Fund”. This is
potentially quite embarrassing and
should be rectified as soon as
possible.

Page 52

Strategy / Policy

Please note that due to the detailed
nature of CIPFA's accounting
guidance we have not considered
adherence to their guidance. We
expect this will have been considered
by the Fund's auditors.

Governance Review

13

Fund Version? /
Version Date

Legal or National
Guidance
Requirement

Adherence to Legislation and
Guidance

Process, decision making or more
general observations

Knowledge and
Skills/Training
Policy

Yes, although not
clear on version
on when
approved

▪

CIPFA & SAB

▪

TPR Code of
Practice

☺ The Fund has recently introduced a
training policy complying with CIPFA
guidance

 The document would benefit from
being significantly expanded and by
including all of the missing elements
below (e.g. when was document
approved, when is it reviewed etc) and
should also be published on the
website.

Conflicts of
Interest Policy

No

▪

SAB

 No specific Conflicts of Interest
policy is in place

The guidance relates to the Board
only, but we would recommend
creating a Policy to apply to all
stakeholders. This is mentioned as
part of the CIPFA annual report
guidance. This should highlight
differences between the Council's
requirements in relation to declarations
for elected members and officers as
well as ensuring other parties
(observers and advisers) are fully
aware of expectations.

Breaches of the
Law Procedure

No

 No specific Breaches Procedure is
in place, and no breaches log has
been provided.

N/A

Governance Review

Required for Pension
Board only

▪

Pensions Act 2004

▪

TPR Code of
Practice

14

Page 53

Strategy / Policy

Strategy / Policy

Fund Version? /
Version Date

Legal or National
Guidance
Requirement

Adherence to Legislation and
Guidance

Process, decision making or more
general observations

Employer
(admission /
cessation / bulk
transfer) Policy

Yes (included in
FSS).

▪

N/A

☺ Although not legally required, many
administering authorities have now put
such policies in place to provide
greater detail and expand on some of
the areas in the FSS, such as how
bulk transfers will normally be
calculated and arranged, how new
employers are admitted to the Fund
etc. The Fund has various elements
incorporated within the FSS and in the
separate policy.

None- good
practice only

In addition, there
is a separate
policy for new
and exiting
employers,
although it is
unclear whether
this is formally in
place or still in
draft

 The Administering Authority should
confirm whether the separate policy is
finalised (making appropriate
decisions if necessary) and then
include it on Fund’s website

As a general principle we would also recommend that any strategy or policy document should include the following elements in addition to the main
contents/purpose of the document:
▪

Introduction including any relevant legislation and guidance

▪

The Fund's aims / objectives in this area

▪

What measurement / monitoring will be carried out in relation to those aims / objectives

Governance Review

15

Page 54

 Most of the key elements in relation
to joining and leaving employers are
included. However, it could be more
explicit in relation to how decisions are
made where a clear route is not to be
followed, and further information could
be included in relation to bulk transfer
payments.

▪

The key risks relating to the strategy and how they are being managed / monitored

▪

Who was consulted on the drafting of the strategy / policy

▪

When / how it was approved

▪

The effective date of the strategy / policy

▪

When it will next be reviewed

▪

The roles / responsibilities of key parties responsible for delivering the strategy (e.g. Pension Committee, officers, fund managers, advisers etc.)

In addition, we recommend that the latest version of all of these key documents is made separately available on the Fund's website (rather than simply as
part of the latest Report and Accounts).
We show in the following tables whether or not these elements are contained in the Fund's key documents, where we consider them appropriate.

Table 3 – Strategies and policies – document structure
Introduction
including
any
relevant
legislation
and
guidance

The Fund's
aims /
objectives

Measurement /
monitoring
requireme
nts

Key risks
and how
they are
being
managed /
monitored

Who was
consulted

When /
how it was
approved

Effective
date

When it
will next be
reviewed

The roles
and
responsibilities of
the key
parties

On website

FSS

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

ISS

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No (but is
set out in
annual
report)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Governance Review

16

Page 55

Strategy /
Policy
Elements

Introduction
including
any
relevant
legislation
and
guidance

The Fund's
aims /
objectives

Measurement /
monitoring
requireme
nts

Key risks
and how
they are
being
managed /
monitored

Who was
consulted

When /
how it was
approved

Effective
date

When it
will next be
reviewed

The roles
and
responsibilities of
the key
parties

On website

Governance

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Partially in
Compliance
Statement

Gov Policy
Statement
and Gov
Compliance
Statement
are online
in Annual
Report

Communications

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Communica
tions Policy
Statement
is in online
Annual
Report

Discretionary

No
Administeri
ng Authority
policy

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Administration

No Policy

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Governance Review

17

Page 56

Strategy /
Policy
Elements

Introduction
including
any
relevant
legislation
and
guidance

The Fund's
aims /
objectives

Measurement /
monitoring
requireme
nts

Key risks
and how
they are
being
managed /
monitored

Who was
consulted

When /
how it was
approved

Effective
date

When it
will next be
reviewed

The roles
and
responsibilities of
the key
parties

On website

Risk

Yes

Yes

Partially,
although
document
not
complete

Yes
(mostly)
and links in
to risk
register

No

No

No

No

Yes

Unclear
(except in
meeting
minutes)

Training

Yes

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

Conflicts

No Policy

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Breaches

No Policy

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Employer
(included
in FSS)

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

As per FSS

 As you can see from the tables above, there are some policies that do not follow good practice by incorporating all of these key elements. We would
recommend the Administering Authority incorporates the review of all of these policies within its business plan and the Committee's forward plan. At that
point, we would recommend that the next review of each policy includes a review of the structure of the policy to ensure all the key elements identified
above are incorporated, they are formally approved and then published as standalone documents on the Fund’s website.

Governance Review

18

Page 57

Strategy /
Policy
Elements

Page 58

☺ Adherence to The Pensions Regulator's Code of Practice
In addition to the LGPS regulations, CIPFA and SAB guidance, there are a number of key
requirements relating to the management and operations of public service pensions schemes
which are outlined in The Pension Regulator's Code of Practice Number 14 - Governance and
administration of public service pension schemes ("TPR's Code of Practice"). Many of the
elements in the guidance relate to legislative requirements, mainly under the Public Service
Pensions Act 2013 or the Pensions Act 2004. The Code of Practice covers the following areas
and it can be seen that there is also overlap with some of the policies and strategies mentioned
previously in this section.
▪

Knowledge and understanding of LPB members

▪

Conflicts of interest and representation

▪

Publishing information about schemes

▪

Internal controls

▪

Scheme record-keeping

▪

Maintaining contributions

▪

Providing information to member

▪

Internal dispute resolution

▪

Reporting breaches of the law

As a matter of best practice, we would expect all Administering Authorities to carry out a regular
review of their approach against:
▪

the legal requirements underpinning the TPR Code of Practice, with a view to ensuring that
these are being adhered to, and

▪

the guidance contained within the code, to consider whether the guidance should be
adhered to or an alternative and justifiable approach should be taken.

This will also be an area of particular interest to Local Pension Boards as it is part of their
statutory responsibility to assist in ensuring compliance with the TPR's Code of Practice.
The Pension Regulator has carried out three surveys of public sector schemes' compliance with
the Code since it was introduced and has stated that it expects all schemes to have assessed
themselves against the law and its code of practice.
The Council has recently arranged for an independent check (using a traffic light scoring
approach) of the Enfield Fund’s compliance with the TPR's Code of Practice, which showed a
significant improvement compared to the previous check, and set out a number of
recommendations to move towards even greater compliance in future. A screenshot of the
model output is set out below:

Governance Review

19

Page 59

Governance Review

20

Page 60

4 - Delivery – How do you meet your aims?
In this section we consider whether the Fund:
▪

has a business plan in place

▪

has an appropriate governance structure

▪

is managed by people with the appropriate level of knowledge and skills

▪

is governed by people with appropriate behaviours needed to make the
governance effective.

 Business Planning
A fund's business plan should set out all planned activities in the forthcoming period. Those activities:
▪

should be driven by objectives of the Fund's strategies and policies

▪

will include activities driven by changes in overriding legislation.

It is good practice for Funds to have a clear business plan. The LGPS Myners Principles published by
CIPFA explicitly refer to this as follows:
"The CFO should ensure that a medium-term business plan is created for the pension fund, which
should include the major milestones and issues to be considered by the committee. The business
plan should contain financial estimates for the investment and administration of the fund, and include
appropriate provision for training. Key targets and the method of measurement should be stated, and
the plan should be submitted to the committee for consideration.
The business plan should review the level of internal and external resources the committee requires
to carry out its functions effectively and contain recommended actions to put right any deficiencies or
to anticipate changing requirements in the future."
We have reviewed the 2018-2021 three-year business plan for the Enfield Fund and, whilst it covers
the majority of tasks to be undertaken by the Administering Authority, it is largely a list of tasks to be
undertaken in each of the 3 years covered. Whilst the plan does summarise the Fund’s objectives in
the introduction the plan itself doesn’t relate back to those objectives and could be considered to be
too superficial; we therefore observe a general lack of depth to the plan.
To improve and strengthen the plan we would recommend expanding it to provide better visibility. To
this end, it might be worthwhile removing (or separating out) elements that are business as usual, and
then providing a narrative (perhaps a paragraph or two) in relation to each of the remaining, more
project based tasks, including a comment on additional resource or budget implications and how
these relate back to the Fund’s objectives. We would expect less detail in relation to years two and
three of the (rolling) business plan, but nevertheless some commentary would help provide gr eater
oversight in relation to ongoing resourcing and delivery.
In addition, even though there is projected cashflow information included in the business plan, there is
no reference to the level of resources required nor operational budget, and this should be a key
element of the plan, as highlighted in the CIPFA guidance on the Myners’ principles.

Performance Measurement
Those responsible for managing the Fund (here the Pensions Policy and Investment Committee)
should be provided with appropriate performance information on a regular basis (e.g. at each
quarterly meeting). Measurements should:
▪

demonstrate whether the Fund's aims are being achieved (as outlined in the Fund's policies and
strategies)

Governance Review

21

Page 61

▪

cover the full range of key areas (e.g. investments, funding, governance, communications and
administration)

▪

enable the committee to evaluate whether or not the Fund's business plan is being achieved

▪

be updated in accordance with appropriate timescales

▪

be presented in a manner that is easy to follow and understandable to those governing the Fund

▪

assist in identifying potential changes to the Fund's business plan, strategies, polices and aims.

☺

At each Committee meeting, a quarterly update report is presented including information from
both Fund Managers and Investment Advisers.

 However,

although investment matters are covered in detail, based on our analysis of the last
three sets of meeting minutes (the only ones available online), it does appear that very little
information is provided in relation to monitoring of other areas such as administration, governance and
communication matters.
We recommend that the Administering Authority reviews its wider monitoring arrangements to ensure
that all of the Fund's aims and objectives, as should be articulated in the key strategies and
policies, are subject to ongoing monitoring at appropriate timescales and at the right level. We
would expect this to include areas such as:
▪

more regular consideration of the effectiveness of the communication strategy, such as measures
in relation to satisfaction surveys or use of the website

▪

administration measures to set out performance statistics, e.g. number of tasks, adherence to
agreed service standards and the amount of work which has not been completed

▪

we would also expect ongoing monitoring reports to share information such as:
–

identified breaches of the law (both those reported to TPR and those simply recorded by the
Fund)

–

monitoring progress against the Fund's budget including expected income and expenditure

–

monitoring of key tasks included within the business plan.

It is possible to include much of this information within a summary scorecard or other simple method
of indicating (at a high level) any areas where objectives or requirements are not being met as well as
allowing Committee members to easily identify what the Fund is doing well. This could perhaps be as
simple as an initial summary page within the appropriate report, which would assist in ensuring
information is kept succinct where appropriate.

 Risk Management
Effective risk management is critical in minimising the impact and/or probability of undesirable events
and in maximising the realisation of opportunities. Risk Management should be:
▪

aligned with the Fund's aims

▪

a key consideration in decision making

▪

systematic or structured

▪

an integral part of the Administering Authority's processes and procedures on a daily basis.

The Fund’s Risk Management policy, which as set out above has recently been developed, will detail
how risks are identified and managed, where responsibility lies and the process for reporting and
escalation of matters.

Governance Review

22

Page 62

In addition to this we note that:
▪

the Administering Authority maintains a risk register which is now taken to each quarterly
Committee meeting as a standing item

▪

much of the focus of Committee papers is around the key risks to the Fund from an asset
management perspective.

Once the integration of the Fund’s Risk Management Policy with the Risk Register is complete, we will
be in a much better position to determine whether the Fund has an effective risk management
process in place. However, the signs are currently positive, and we would expect this area to ‘turn
green’ once this is up and running on an ongoing basis.

Governance Review

23

Page 63

5 - Decisions – Do you have effective decision making?
In this section we consider whether the Fund:
▪

has an appropriate governance structure

▪

is managed by people with the appropriate level of knowledge and skills

▪

is governed by people with appropriate behaviours needed to make the
governance effective.

In this part of the report we comment on how Committee meetings are run, for example whether
meetings are well chaired, whether there is appropriate engagement from the Committee, with all or
most individuals having an opportunity to participate in the discussion, with appropriate guidance from
advisers and officers and whether there is sufficient time for discussion. We would normally base this
on our observations at meetings and effectiveness questionnaires, along with information taken from
reviewing recent minutes, reports and other background information. However, we have not been
asked to observe any meetings nor issue any questionnaires, so our comments are solely based on
the desktop review information we have gathered.

Appropriate governance structure
There is no one 'correct' governance structure. The Administering Authority's structure should:
▪ have clear terms of reference
▪

have a clearly documented scheme of delegation

▪

allow decision making at the appropriate level

▪

allow quick decision making where appropriate

▪

include appropriate representation from stakeholders

▪

involve well-presented information/reports with good quality (Committee) administration (e.g.
issuing papers in good time)

▪

ensure an appropriate range of subject matters is considered

▪

allow sufficient time for discussion where necessary

▪

have good quality (Committee) administration (e.g. issuing papers in good time)

▪

involve a process for managing conflicts

▪

provide transparency to stakeholders where appropriate.

These elements are considered in this section.

 Terms of reference and scheme of delegation to the Committee and senior officers
Article 20 of the Council's constitution (in Part 2) sets out the structure and responsibilities for the
Pension Policy and Investment Committee. However, it only briefly states the membership of the
Committee and does not make reference to areas such as policy on substitutes and numbers
needed to be quorate. It also contains the Committee’s Terms of Reference, but this is very light on
detail - it simply lists 8 items the Committee is responsible for, ranging from the very specific such
as “Agree the Statement of Investment Principles” (which has now been superseded by the ISS) to
the very broad such as “Consider any other policy or investment issue as the Committee sees fit”.
Having examined this section of the constitution, our conclusion is that there would be benefit in
significantly expanding the terms of reference drawn up for the Committee to be more detailed.
That being said, the Fund's Governance Policy Statement and the Governance Compliance
Statement do provide some more detail on the operation of the Fund (although again, as set out

Governance Review

24

Page 64

above, these could also benefit from being expanded upon). In particular, there is a definite focus
on investment responsibilities, and we would recommend reviewing the Constitution and these
governance documents to ensure they cover all key areas appropriately, including giving
appropriate weighting to administration and communications responsibilities.
In addition, we couldn’t find any substantive evidence of pension matters being formally delegated
to Fund officers, other than in Part 4 of the Constitution where the Head of Exchequer Services is
given delegated responsibility for “ensuring that payroll and pension payments are made promptly
and accurately and in accordance with legislation” (it is not clear to us exactly where this ‘payment’
delegation ends and where the responsibility to put in place appropriate processes / policies to
facilitate the smooth running of the Fund would start). However, we assume that the Committee
would be within its powers to delegate certain responsibilities to senior officers, rather than it having
to be done at Council level, but this should also be a point that is clarified if the Constitution were
updated with more detailed responsibilities and powers for the Committee. The Council should
ensure that, if matters are delegated on an ongoing basis, part of the decision-making process is
also agreeing what ongoing reporting of those matters is required (for example, no reporting
required, a summary at the following Committee meeting or an immediate email around Committee
members).

 Appropriate level of decision making and quick decision making where appropriate
It is important that decisions are made at the appropriate level and that the governance structure is
flexible enough to ensure that decisions can be made in a timely manner. It is very difficult to
ascertain purely from the agendas / minutes without observing any meetings whether this is the
case, but it would appear from the agendas / minutes we have reviewed that the Committee does
make decisions where required at meetings and there are appropriate levels of discussion taking
place. It is not possible for us to tell whether this takes place or not, but the chair should always
ensure that when decisions need to be made they are proposed and seconded and everyone has a
chance to vote (if needed) or to express an alternative point of view. We can see that decisions are
recorded in the minutes as a matter of public record, which is positive.
However, it may be important that certain decisions (e.g. short-term or tactical investment decisions
within the constraints of the Fund's strategy) can be made in between Committee meetings. In line
with our comments on the Constitution and the Terms of Reference above, it would be useful for
these documents (and the Investment Strategy Statement) to be clear on what can / cannot be
delegated to Officers (and under what conditions etc).

 Appropriate representation
It is good practice for administering authorities to allow some representation for scheme members
and employers in the management of the fund. The Pension Policy and Investment Committee is
made up of six elected members from Enfield Council (the administering authority), although the
Committee has also appointed an independent professional advisor which we believe is a positive
move.
However, the recent establishment of the Pension Board does allow some employer and member
representation, as the Board is made up of:
–

Four employer side representatives

–

Four employee side representatives.

The involvement of a wider range of stakeholders in the Pension Board provides a good opportunity
for them to feed in their thoughts, although the lack of diversity in the Committee structure means
opportunities for them to feed directly into the decision-making process are probably limited. It is
considered good practice to have employer representatives (i.e. a representative of employers
other than the Administering Authority) and scheme member representatives as members of the
Committee and we recommend that this is considered in future.

Governance Review

25

Page 65

As an aside, we note that the Pension Board area of the Fund’s website (when accessing via the
main Committee page) links to the old Investment Panel members and details rather than the
Board – this should be rectified at the earliest opportunity.

☺ Well-presented information/reports with good quality (Committee) administration (e.g.
issuing papers in good time)
Information and reports are provided to the Pension Policy and Investment Committee by officers
and various advisers (including the investment consultant). Our view from the reports we have
seen is the information and reports are well constructed and presented, although this is based on a
limited sample size. We are not able to determine the timeliness of when they were issued. Without
undertaking a questionnaire to determine the views of Committee members on this matter, it is not
really possible to comment further.

 Appropriate range of subject matters being considered
As mentioned above, we would expect to see more time spent at Committee meetings focussing on
other areas of management, and we particularly note a lack of information relating to governance,
administration and communication matters. Again, based on a limited sample size of recent
minutes reviewed, we note that the Board tends to focus on reviewing the work of the Committee,
which is their main remit, but we feel there is probably scope for the Board to become more
involved in supporting the administering authority on other areas relating to the management of the
Fund.

☺ Sufficient

time for discussion

Having reviewed the previous agendas and minutes it would appear that all agenda items have
been covered in each meeting, so we have no particular concerns in this area, although once again
this is very difficult to tell without observing meetings and gauging opinions.

 Managing

actual and potential conflicts of interest

Each Committee elected member and co-opted member is required to declare any interests
(pecuniary or not) in line with local authority requirements at the beginning of each meeting and this
is recorded in the meeting minutes. The Committee minutes indicate that this is done as a standing
item at the start of each meeting.
A pecuniary interest is generally considered as an interest that a person has in a matter because of
a reasonable likelihood or expectation of appreciable financial gain or loss to the person. This
would cover areas such as land ownership, involvement with businesses and gifts or hospitality.
However, there can be examples whereby a Committee member does not have a clear pecuniary
or non-pecuniary interest as defined by the Council's Code of Conduct, but instead has a personal
or professional conflict of interest that needs to be managed appropriately. For example,
involvement with an employer who participates in the Fund.
In that example, there may be circumstances where it is necessary for Committee members (e.g.
administering authority or other Council's elected members) to balance their employing authority
responsibilities (e.g. maintaining local service provision) against their administering authority
responsibilities (e.g. ensuring appropriate payments by all employers into the Fund). This could
potentially extend to political views whereby some councillors may have different views than other
councillors from differing political parties, for example, in relation to investment in local
infrastructure or environmental, social and governance (ESG) matters. Recent Queen's Counsel
opinion and the Law Commission report conclude that ultimately Committee members, and all
those concerned with the management of the Fund, should remain focussed on the underlying
fiduciary and public law responsibilities. This means that Fund assets should be invested in the

Governance Review

26

Page 66

best interests of members and beneficiaries. The potential for interests that could conflict with
Fund matters, and this ultimate responsibility, should always be recognised and managed
appropriately.
The Council's Code of Conduct requirements in relation to disclosable pecuniary and some nonpecuniary interests are a useful starting point for managing conflicts. However, there are
circumstances where other interests could have an impact on impartiality in the Fund's decision
making. A Fund-specific Conflicts of Interest Policy (see below) could ensure this point is clear to all
involved. It is, however, worth highlighting that this would not necessarily require individuals to be
removed from meetings.
The CIPFA Guidance for LGPS Funds in Preparing the Annual Report refers to the information
contained within the Fund's Governance Compliance Statement including their "policy and
processes for managing any conflicts of interest". It is also a key area of interest for both the
Scheme Advisory Board and in The Pension Regulator's Guidance, albeit more focussed on
Pension Board members.
The Pension Board Terms of Reference includes a section on conflicts of interest and whilst it is not
a legal requirement, as mentioned earlier in this report, we recommend that the Administering
Authority extends this and develops a Fund-specific Conflicts of Interest Policy outlining how
conflicts of interest will be managed and dealt with at a Fund level, i.e. including the Committee,
Board, officers and advisers. This could include reference to:
▪

the Council's Code of Conduct

▪

how it relates to co-optees and observers

▪

examples of Fund specific potential conflicts of interest

▪

how conflicts of interest (and potential conflicts of interest) will be managed

▪

guidance for officers and advisers of the Fund to also adhere to.

☺ Transparency to Stakeholders
As with all local authority functions, it is important that stakeholders have appropriate access to
Fund information, including regarding the governance of the Fund. In this regard the Administering
Authority's activities are appropriately driven by local authority legislation, for example:
▪

the requirement to provide public access to meetings (except for exempt items), and

▪

the requirement that all reports, agendas and minutes are published (except for exempt
information).

It is pleasing to therefore see Committee and Board meeting agendas and reports, and in due
course the minutes, are now published on the Council’s website. However, full minutes are only
available online for the most recent 2018 meetings. Whilst this will no doubt improve in future as
more meetings take place, it would be worth revisiting pre-2018 meetings to ensure that their
agendas/minutes are all available online too. It is also positive to note that exempt items appear to
be kept to a minimum, demonstrating a culture of openness and transparency in decision making.
The LGPS regulations require each Administering Authority to produce and publish an annual
report and accounts providing key financial information, management information and strategies.
This requirement is enhanced by the (non-statutory) CIPFA Guidance for LGPS Funds in Preparing
the Annual Report.
Our observations are that the Administering Authority demonstrates compliance with this
requirement, producing and publishing a thorough set of report and accounts annually. As
mentioned earlier in this report we feel that the annual report and accounts c ould be improved by
expansion in some areas, such as the Fund's administration performance.

 Further the Administering Authority maintains a website which includes a wide range of
information including:

Governance Review

27

Page 67

▪

information for scheme members about the benefits of being a scheme member

▪

key governance documents (e.g. Annual Report and Accounts and certain policies)

▪

information about the Committee and Pension Board.

However, the information on the website could do with a thorough review and overhaul to ensure
that it contains all the information one would expect, and also that it is presented in a logical and
easily accessible format. Although the scheme member information is generally well set out, with
easy access to the various forms / guides they might need, when undertaking this review we found
it difficult to find / access a lot of the information you would usually expect to see. In particular, a
large number of policies / strategies cannot be accessed on the website (or they are so difficult to
find that we couldn’t do so!), and the information on Boards / Committees / Constitution etc are also
very hard to navigate to and around (particularly from the home page).

Skills and knowledge – Pension Policy and Investment Committee
A critical element of good governance is the need for those managing the Fund to have the
appropriate level of knowledge and skills. Administering Authorities should:
▪

clearly articulate the knowledge and skills requirements in a Fund policy

▪

provide ongoing training in an effective and suitable manner to meet those requirements

▪

regularly review whether knowledge aspirations are being met

▪

ensure they rely appropriately on officers and advisers to provide expert knowledge.

The current guidance relating to training of Committee members and officers of LGPS Funds is
included in the following documents:
▪

CIPFA Code of Practice on public sector pensions finance knowledge and skills

▪

CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework – Elected representatives and non-executives

▪

CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework – Officers

In addition, the Scheme Advisory Board's Guidance and The Pensions Regulator's Code of
Practice (albeit focussed on Pension Board knowledge and skills legal requirements) highlight the
need for the Administering Authority to have appropriate policies and procedures in place to ensure
a high level of knowledge and skills.
Though adhering to the CIPFA documents is not statutory, it is considered good practice and there
is increasing acceptance of the requirement for high levels of knowledge, as well as increasing
scrutiny of this requirement by Committee members and officers. The key elements of the CIPFA
requirements set out above are considered further below. Our focus within this section is on the
requirements relating to Committee members and senior officers of the Fund.

 Clearly articulated knowledge and skills

requirements in a Fund policy

The Fund has recently established a formal training policy for Committee members to aid them in
performing their roles and enabling them to act effectively in line with their responsibilities. Whilst
this is a major step forward, please see our comments above on the specifics of the Training Policy
itself, as we recommend a number of changes to make the policy a much more comprehensive
document and to cover all of the areas referred to in the guidance from CIPFA and the Scheme
Advisory Board.

Governance Review

28

Page 68

Providing ongoing training in an effective and suitable manner to meet those requirements
and regularly review whether knowledge aspirations are being met
We believe it is important to offer a wide range of training opportunities to Committee (and Board)
members via a range of different approaches. For example, in addition to ensuring that Committee
members are aware of all the key elements of managing the Fund, we believe it is important that
they have the opportunity to learn about areas other than those that are a current priority for the
Administering Authority. A key skill of a good Committee member is to be able to identify where
information is not provided in reports, on an agenda or as part of a business plan, and therefore to
be able to ask questions relating to alternative options that are not under consideration (i.e. turning
the unknown unknowns into known unknowns).

 We note from the minutes that Committee

meetings regularly include presentations / training
(although based on the minutes we reviewed this was largely investment focussed). We have not
seen a training log and the Training Policy is not clear how the training sessions attended / required
will be monitored / recorded. We recommend that whatever method is used / introduced should
provide an overall assessment against the CIPFA knowledge and skills framework (or whichever
framework is adopted) to allow the Administering Authority to understand whether Committee
members and officers have had appropriate training in the required competencies. We also
recommend that information in relation to attendance at training is included in the Fund's Annual
Report and Accounts.

☺ Rely appropriately on officers and advisers to provide expert knowledge
Having reviewed the most recent Committee minutes and agendas it is clear that the members rely
on input from their investment and actuarial advisers and Fund officers to assist them in their
decision making. Every meeting features updates and papers from the investment advisors and
there is regular input from the officers and other advisers when needed.

Behaviour - Committee
A good governance structure will not be effective unless it involves the right people with the right
attitude. Individuals should:
▪ have a high level of attendance at meetings
▪ demonstrate integrity in relation to their Fund role
▪ be engaged and provide appropriate challenge
▪ be accountable for the decisions made
▪ highlight any potential conflicts they may have
▪ for a Chairperson, manage the meetings fairly without any bias to individuals or self
▪ prepare adequately for meetings.
We cannot really comment on whether the Committee (and Board) members display these attributes
without observing a meeting in action.

 Attendance at Meetings
However, we can say that the Committee meetings we did review the minutes for were reasonably
well attended (two meetings had five out of six Councillor attendees, and the third meeting had four
out of six attendees). Whilst it is not ideal that any meeting doesn’t have complete attendance, the
four absences across the three meetings were all from different Councillors, so on our limited
evidence we do not see any systematic widespread issues and have no particular concerns in this
area.

Governance Review

29

Page 69

Appendix – Reference Material
This appendix lists the various documents that were considered as
part of this Governance Review.
▪

Annual Report 2017/18

▪

Communications Strategy (Detailed in Annual Report 2017/18)

▪

Funding Strategy Statement March 2017

▪

Governance Compliance Statement (Detailed in Annual Report 2017/18)

▪

Investment Strategy Statement February 2017

▪

Risk Management Policy

▪

Risk Register

▪

Pension Policy and Investment Committee minutes and agendas

▪

Pension Fund Training / CPD action plan

▪

Pension Fund Business Plan 2018-21

▪

Council’s constitution

Governance Review

30

Information
Daniel Kanaris
Senior Public Sector Consultant
Public Sector Team
+44 (0)117 900 4447
daniel.kanaris@aon.com
Karen McWilliam
Head of Public Sector Benefits and Governance Consultancy
Public Sector Team
+44 (0)7711 016707
karen.mcwilliam@aon.com

Page 70

About Aon
Aon plc (NYSE:AON) is a leading global provider of risk management, insurance and reinsurance brokerage, and human resources solutions and
outsourcing services. Through its more than 66,000 colleagues worldwide, Aon unites to empower results for clients in over 120 countries via innovative
and effective risk and people solutions and through industry-leading global resources and technical expertise. Aon has been named repeatedly as the
world’s best broker, best insurance intermediary, best reinsurance intermediary, best captives manager, and best employee benefits consulting firm by
multiple industry sources. Visit aon.com for more information on Aon and aon.com/manchesterunited to learn about Aon’s global partnership with
Manchester United.

Governance Review

31

Page 71

Agenda Item 6

London Borough of Enfield
UPDATE TO

Local Pension Board 18th December 2018

SUBJECT

Briefing Update –
Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP) Project

LEAD OFFICER

Tim O’Connor – Pension Manager

Date

5.12.2018

1. RECOMMENDATIONS – ITEM NO 4
1.1 To note the contents of this update.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
2.1 The purpose of this update is to highlight the project work surrounding the
reconciliation of GMPs as part of the pensions administration team.
3. BACKGROUND
3.1 The option to contract-out of the State Second Pension (S2P) came to an
end in 2016 when the Single State Pension was introduced. Prior to April 1997
the minimum level of benefit the DB scheme had to provide was known as a
Guaranteed Minimum Pension (or GMP), which still forms part of some members’
benefits.
3.2 When contracting-out ended in April 2016, HM Revenue and Customs
(HMRC) no longer tracks contracted-out rights and issued closure schedules to
schemes so they can compare these against GMP amounts held on scheme
records. This is known as a GMP reconciliation.
3.3 The Pensions team have conducted and submitted our reconciliation response
to HMRC.
3.4 HMRC will respond again with final confirmation and any bill outstanding
(appendix 1).

Page 72

3.5 We will issue a full report once we have the response from HMRC which is due
to be issued by March/April 2019, we will keep the Board informed.

Tim O’Connor, Pensions Manager
7 December 2018

Appendix
No 1
There will be a bill for any CEP (certified equivalent premiums) outstanding. This is
an amount to buy people back into the state pension and funds pay this when a
member takes a refund.

Page 73

Agenda Item 7

PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 29.10.2018

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE PENSION POLICY &
INVESTMENT COMMITTEE HELD ON MONDAY, 29TH
OCTOBER, 2018
MEMBERS: Councillor Mahmut Aksanoglu, Derek Levy, Terence Neville OBE JP,
Ergun Eren and Doug Taylor (Chair)
Officers:
Matt Bowmer (Interim Director of Finance), Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance
Pension Investments) and Tariq Soomauroo (Governance & Scrutiny)
Also Attending: Daniel Carpenter (Aon) and Rohan Meswani (Aon)

81.

WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS
The Chair welcomed all attendees to the meeting.

82.

APOLOGIES
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Claire Stewart and Carolan
Dobson (Independent Advisor).
Apologies for lateness received from Councillor Derek Levy.

83.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interest in respect of any item listed on the
agenda.

84.

STANDING ITEMS
Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pension Investments) updated the board
on the standing items.
A. Business Plan 2018/19 - No changes
B. Enfield Pension Fund Risk Management Policy – Following a
governance review a Pension Fund Risk Policy has now been
prepared to accompany the Fund’s Risk register.
Councillor Doug Taylor (Chair) advised that he would like the Local Pension
Board Committee papers added to future agendas as a standing item.

85.

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS: 1ST AUGUST 2018
Noted:

Page 74
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 29.10.2018
Councillor Terry Neville advised that the minutes should reflect that Members
were not convinced at the last meeting due to the absence of a potfolio
manager.
Agreed:
The minutes of the meeting held on 01 August 2018 were agreed as a correct
record.
86.

CQS PRESENTATION - MULTI ASSET CREDIT
Councillor Doug Taylor (Chair) and Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance
Pensions Investments) introduced the report following the points of
clarification requested by Members from the previous meeting.
Noted:



CQS had superior long- term performance figures than JP Morgan
Members wanted to identify how both managers could navigate the
market in these uncertain times.

Received a report pack tabled by LCIV & CQS
Craig Scordellis (Head of Long-Only Multi-Asset Credit CQS) presented the
item on their investment philosophy.
Noted












Company launched on the 31st May 2018 with £343m
Current AUM £488m (Figure 700m at the end of this quarter)
Worst October month returns since 2008, return rate since inception is
1.43%
Annualised Return 5.07%, Annualised Volatility LTD 2.06% and Sharpe
Ration LTD 2.19%.
No underlying markets are bought to ensure there is minimal volatility
(avoiding defaults)
There are no material drawdowns to investors when there are defaults
US loans are currently safer than Europe (Strong US housing data and
low loan default rates).
CQS will preserve/outperform when there is a crisis
Allocation will be to loans rather than HYC
After December, numbers will be 5 ½ % (3.35% Cash Interest)
Next year with Brexit and other issues, volatility will increase but this
does create good investment opportunities.

The Committee thanked CQS for their presentation
AGREED

Page 75
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 29.10.2018



87.

£50m to be invested into the Multi Asset Credit (MAC) via the LCIV.
Formal review to take place in 6 months’ time
Paul Reddaway advised he can invest money by the end of November.

AON PRESENTATION ON RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENTS (TRAINING
SESSION)
Lara Kennard (Aon Representative) made a presentation on the area of
Responsible investments.
Noted:
What is responsible investment (RI)
The importance of them in an investment strategy
Potential actions in constructing a RI
The Committee thanked Lara for her presentation.

88.

LCIV - PRESENTATION ON ESG POLICY
London CIV representatives presented their ESG Policy.
Noted:





Responsible Investment Policy established (to be ratified at
Shareholder meeting)
LCIV has become a UN PRI signatory and member of LAPFF
LCIV is a signatory of the UK Stewardship Code
All LCIV Managers are required to have RI Policies (Published on LCIV
client portal)

The Committee thanked LCIV for the presentation and advised that they
would like an update on the proposals from the Shareholder meeting.
89.

PRESENTATION RBC - SUSTAINABLE EQUITY PRODUCT/ LCIV
Received a Global Asset Management report pack from Simon Gregory
(Global Equity Team product specialist) and Greta Favetta (Investment
analyst).
The Committee thanked Global Asset Management for their presentation.

90.

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT FRAMEWORK - REPORT

Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pensions Investments) asked the members
to note the contents of this report and to consult with the wider membership of
the Fund.
The Committee noted the contents of the report.

Page 76
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 29.10.2018
91.

ANTIN PROPOSAL FOR A NEW INFRASTRUCTURE FUND
Received a report from Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pensions
Investments) on Antin proposal for a new Infrastructure Fund.
Noted





Enfield have successfully committed capital towards Antin in line with
the original commitment timetable (January 2017)
Funds would be commit funds towards Antin over time to increase
Fund’s allocation to infrastructure.
New fund likely to oversubscribe and a delayed decision may lead to
Enfield’s commitment being scaled down
LCIV are unveiling their proposals next week.

Agreed


92.

The Committee will compare the relative merits of both options at the
next meeting.

QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REPORT - 30TH JUNE 2018
Received a report from Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pensions
Investments) on the Aon quarterly Investment report ended 30th June 2018.
The Committee noted the individual
acknowledged the funding level assessed.

manager

performances

and

Confidential
93.

ABSOLUTE RETURN BOND MANDATE
Received a report from Paul Reddaway (Head of Finance Pensions
Investments) regarding Options for Absolute Return Bonds (ARB) mandate.
Noted:


To agree in principle to dis-invest from Insight ARB 400+ product and
to consider an alternative ARB manager with a less aggressive
approach and lower volatility or to examine the LCIV Global Bonds
Fund that targets an absolute return with high quality bonds.

Agreed:


94.

To consider options set out in the report at the next Pension, Policy
and Investment Committee in December.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Page 77
PENSION POLICY & INVESTMENT COMMITTEE - 29.10.2018
RESOLVED, in accordance with Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act
1972 to exclude the press and the public from the meeting for the items listed on
part two of the agenda on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 (information relating to the financial
or business affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that
information) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act (as amended by the Local
Government (Access to Information) (Variation) (Order 2006).

This page is intentionally left blank

